## By-Laws of the Artesian City Car Club

- I. The name of this organization shall be the Artesian City Car Club.
- II. The Artesian City Car Club shall be a non-profit organization designed to initiate, organize, promote and encourage local activities connected with the history, restoration, collection and display of collector vehicles.
- III. New members shall be accepted upon receipt of dues by the Treasurer.
- IV. The elected officers and their responsibilities shall be as follows:
  - a. President: The President shall preside at all meetings. The President shall appoint all committee chairmen. He shall have the power, in event of a tie, to decide all questions of equal division and have all powers and duties usually vested in the office.
  - b. Vice President: The Vice President shall assume the duties of the President in his absence.
  - c. Secretary: The Secretary shall handle all official correspondence of the Club and shall keep minutes of all meetings of the Artesian City Car Club.
  - d. Treasurer: The Treasurer shall collect and disburse all monies of the Artesian City Car Club. At years' end, the books shall be verified to the satisfaction of the incoming Treasurer.
  - e. Show Chairman: The show Chairman's position is an organizational position. He shall appoint the Chief Judge and other committee chairmen necessary for the smooth functioning of the show. He will report to the President what each committee is doing. He has the responsibility and authority to see that the show functions properly.
- V. Standing Committee Chairmen shall be selected by the President.
- VI. These standing and temporary chairmen shall be appointed by the Show Chairman.
  - a. The Chief Judge has sole responsibility for the judging of the automobiles. He shall appoint all judges for the show. He shall make himself available as arbitrator for all ties and disagreements. Once the judging is finalized and the show disbanded, the judging is final and shall remain as is. The Chief Judge is then required to present the trophies at the show banquet.

## By-Laws of the Artesian City Car Club

b. The Show Chairman shall appoint any other temporary chairmen he feels necessary for the smooth running of the show.

## VII. Officers shall be elected as follows:

- a. The Nominating Committee shall consist of the Chairman who shall be the immediate past President and two members at large, to be appointed by the past President. They shall submit a proposed slate of officers of two people for each office at the October meeting. These nominees for office shall have been contacted and their acceptance secured prior to slate being presented for consideration. They shall accept nominations from the floor at the November meeting. These nominations shall be voted on by secret ballot at the November meeting. Election shall be by majority of all members in good standing present and voting.
- VIII. In case of vacancy by the President, the Vice President shall automatically take his position. Any other vacancy on the Executive Committee shall be filled by appointment by remaining committee members.
- IX. At the annual meeting of the month of December, newly elected officers will be installed and shall assume office. Membership meeting shall be held monthly.
- X. A quorum shall consist of five (5) members in good standing. A majority of all members voting shall be necessary to pass any motion. A quorum shall be necessary to conduct any business.
- XI. The Fiscal Year shall run from the annual meeting to the annual meeting in December. All dues shall be due at this time.
- XII. In case of dissolution of the Club, after all legal debts are paid, any remaining balance shall be disbursed to current charity.
- XIII. To amend these By-Laws, the proposed amendments shall be presented at one meeting and mailed in the following newsletter, and voted upon at the next meeting. Three-quarters (¾) of the quorum voting is necessary to pass any proposed amendments. Roberts Rules shall prevail when necessary.